
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  SEALED BIDS 
PARKING AUTOMATION EQUIPMENT, PARKING LOT F 

FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 
(PUR 10-040) 

 
QUESTIONS/ANSWERS & CLARIFICATIONS 

 
 
POSTED 10/14/10 
The following questions were submitted.  City responses are designated in 
blue. 
>>> "Terri White" <terriw@gmgsys.com> 10/5/2010 3:31 PM >>> 
Hi Alex.  
We plan on submitting a Bid, but I have some questions in regard to the Lot F project, so that I 
can provide you with everything you need:  

 
1. Specs call for a Pay by Space machine. Is there any particular reason you prefer 

Pay by Space as opposed to Pay and Display? The later is a little bit cheaper since 
there is no key pad, plus it allows placement at the entry, making it more 
convenient for patrons (they can pay as they enter the lot rather than walk back to 
their cars after purchasing the ticket), and you don’t have the expense of painting 
numbers on all of the spaces.  
City has determined Pay by Space meets the needs of the City.   

2. I noticed you have a booth in place at this location. Will the booth remain in place 
after going to an automated parking system, or do you plan to remove it? If so, 
should we include the removal in the bid?  
The booth will remain at this time do not include removal of booth in bid. 

3. Is there A/C power and internet connectivity to the booth? Is that something we 
can tap into for this equipment installation?  
There is A/C power in the booth which can be tapped into.  However there is no 
internet connectivity 

4. Specs call for the “ability” to integrate with citation mgt and pay-by-phone 
technologies. Should we include the price for integration in this bid, or is that 
something the city plans to do after installation?  
No do not include price of integration into this bid.  We are looking for 
equipment that will be able to incorporate this if we choose to in the future. 

5. Should we assume this equipment must be PCI certified to allow credit/debit card 
security? Yes 

6. Specs call for A/C, Battery and Solar. Does that mean any power will be 
acceptable, or does the unit need to be equipped for all three?  
The City has not decided which power option it would like to use at this time 
and is looking to obtain the pricing on all power options. 

7. Is there a reason you prefer wireless communication? Hard-wiring is more secure 
and more reliable than wireless, and does not incur the monthly wireless 
communication cost (which typically runs about $40-$50 per month), so is much 
more cost effective in the long run.  



Because we do not have hard-wiring in place at this location the City has 
determined that wireless would be its best option at this time. 
 

8. Prior questions talked about validations and access card use. Are there validations 
or access card use planned at this lot?  
There are plans to use validations at this lot there are no current plans to use 
access cards. 

9. How many different entities are using validations for this lot?   
Approximately 20 merchants or businesses use a form of our validations 

10. How are they being used at this particular location? (For example, merchants 
issue validation stickers for a set time period, or a jury commissioner issues a 
100% validation via magnetic stripe encoding, etc).  
Merchants issue validations stickers for a set time.  As well some merchants 
have an ink stamp.   

11. We have the capacity for different types of validations- different applications lend 
themselves to the different types of users. Do you want us to include all the 
options, or should we make a recommendation based on usage?  
Please give pricing for all types of validation capabilities as well as provide a 
recommendation. 

12. What kind of access cards are you currently using?  
No access cards are to be used at this location 

13. Are they proprietarily encrypted?  
No access cards will be used at this location 

14. If not proprietary, do you plan to continue with the same cards if possible? N/A 
15. If you need new cards, how many? N/A 
16. What is the usage difference between your hang tags and access cards? N/A 
17. What do you want the read range to be for the access cards? (6”, 2 feet, 15 feet?) 

N/A 
18. Is there event parking at this lot that incorporates pre-paid parking?  

There is no there is no event parking at this lot 
19. It looks like you want to eventually automate all of your parking operations. Is it 

important to be able to manage all of the access and revenue systems from a 
single location?  
We will look at automation of our entire parking operations in the future and it 
will be important for us to be able to manage all of the access and revenue 
systems from a single location. 
 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Best Regards, 
 Terri White 
Director of Sales 
GMG Systems, Inc. 
14435 Catalina Street 
San Leandro, CA  94577 
888-464-7978 x708 
terriw@gmgsys.com 
 



 
POSTED 10/5/10 
The following questions were submitted.  City responses are designated in 
blue. 
 
>>> "Lauri Keller" <lauri.keller@ipsgroupinc.com> 9/29/2010 3:42 PM >>> 
With respect to the above RFP, thank you for addressing these questions: 
 
Please clarify, or rather confirm, that this RFP is only seeking parking equipment for 
Parking Lot F or on a parking facility? 
This Bid opportunity is only to automate Parking Lot F located on Sutter St 
south of Main St and north of Market St   
How many parking spaces does the lot cover? 
78 Spaces are in Parking Lot F 
Is the City currently charging at this lot/s?  If so, what is the current method for collecting 
payment? 
Yes the City does currently charge for this lot.  Currently the method for 
collecting payment is an attendant 
Please clarify, or confirm, that this RFP is not looking for any on-street solutions at this 
time and is only interested in off-street applications? 
This bid is not looking for any on-street solutions at this time. This bid is 
strictly for an off-street solution for Parking Lot F 
Will the City be issuing an RFP for on-street parking in the future?  Do you know when? 
The City has been through an RFP for previously for automation and this 
bid for automation of Lot F is a result of the RFP process. 
Would an integrated system of all parking systems be of interest to the City for efficiency 
purposes? 
Please see bid specifications as to what the City is looking for on this bid.   
 
Thank you, 
Lauri Keller 
IPS Group, Inc. 
www.ipsgroupinc.com 
voice:  858.404.0607 x128 
fax:      858.408.3352 
email:  Lauri.Keller@ipsgroupinc.com 

 

 
 
 
POSTED 9-23-10 
NOTICE:  The Selection Committee rejected all proposals submitted on 
July 8, 2010.  Project is being reconfigured to a more manageable size.  All 
interested parties please resubmit sealed bids.  The new submission dates 
are as follows: 



 
1.  Communication  –  please send your communication  via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is October 7, 2010. 
 
3.  Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by October 14, 2010. 
 
4. Bids due promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, October 21, 2010, City Clerk’s 

Office. 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
POSTED 7/1/10 
Received another set of questions from 2 proponents.  Please note that the 
answers/clarifications are incorporated into the email.  CITY response is in 
dark blue, bolded and italicized. 
 
>>> Laura Nuhaan <laura.nuhaan@parkmobileglobal.com> 6/25/2010 2:54 PM >>> 
Dear Alex 

I have the following questions regarding the RFP: 

-1.What are the city’s main objectives for this RFP? The City’s objective for this RFP is 
to begin updating and automation of its parking fee collection. 
 
-2.What are the key success factors for Parking Automation. In other words after the first 
3 years of implementation when will you be satisfied? The City will on an on-going 
basis continue to evaluate automated parking devices to ensure they meet the City’s 
needs and remain up to date. 
 
-3.Ad 1.24 in the RFP:  Contract bond. Is this required for Parkmobile as well being a 
non hardware solution? As the specifications state, the Performance Bond may be 
required.  Depends on what’s determined by the Selection Committee. 
 
-4.Are the enforcement handhelds used indeed the Duncan Autocite X3 and wireless 
enabled? The enforcement handhelds are the Duncan Autocite X3CI.  It is not wireless.  
It is plugged in at the end of day to download citations.   
 
-5. I have the following information about the parking situation in Stockton, is this still 
correct? 
The city of Stockton has approximate 7500 of which 1800 parking spaces are operated by 
single space Duncan meters. The majority of the spaces has a 4 hour time limitation (a 
few blocks have a 10 hour limit to accommodate court visitors and employees) and the 
rate is $ 0.50 cents per hour. The other 5700 parking spaces are spread out over 5 garages 
(manned by personal attendants and only cash payments are accepted) and 15 surface 
lots. A few lots are still free to park; the other lots are manned by personal attendants who 



control the motorists when leaving the lot. Lot rates are 1 dollar per hour with the first 30 
minutes free with validation. The parking department is responsible for meter and 
parking revenue. Parking revenue is circa 600 K per year.  Citation and its revenue are 
handled separately by the police department. There are approx 8 enforcement officers and 
they use AutoCITE™ X3 Duncan handhelds which are wireless. Enforcement drives 
in small 3wheel carts. Enforcement of the lots is not done by the police department. 
The City of Stockton has approximately 6900 spaces of which approximately 1800 
parking spaces are operated by Single space Duncan meters.   
 
 -6.Regarding 2.0 Identify update need to current systems to integrate automation.  
 
- 6a. Which system does the city have in place for citation processing, and what is the 
supplier used? Currently the City contracts through a third party which is the City of 
Inglewood for citation processing. 
 
-6b. Same question as 6a for enforcement? Currently parking enforcement is handled 
through the City Police Department. 
 
 
-6c. Is there a need to integrate with the financial system? Could you provide details 
regarding the financial system? At this time there is no need to integrate with the City 
Financial System.  RFP requests respondents to identify online management software 
capabilities.  
 
-6d. Do you have an API for data passing? No  
 
-6e. Which payment processor does the city use?  And what are the credit cards accepted 
Currently the City parking is on a cash only basis.  City handles directly automatic 
payment for monthly parking. 
 
7. What would be the preferred day of starting the implementation and launch?  
The preferred date of starting the implementation is still to be determined.   
 
Can you pls confirm receipt of the questions submitted.  
Thank you so much and have a great weekend 
  
Laura 

Laura Nuhaan | EVP Sales | Parkmobile USA, Inc. | m: (650)  283-4116 | f: (770) 818-9039 |  www.parkmobile.com  
|<image001.jpg> http://tinyurl.com/ParkmobileUSA     

  

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
>>> Wade Bettisworth <WBettisworth@t2systems.com> 6/25/2010 4:48 PM >>> 
Alex/Concepcion:   
Attached please find questions that we have regarding RFP  #PUR 10-040.  
 Best regards, Wade Bettisworth 
 
 

Vendor Questions 
T2 Systems 

RFP No. PUR 10-040 
 
 

1. Access Control 
a. Does the City intend on using the same access control readers in 

use today? 
New Equipment for the garages must be able to incorporate 
existing equipment or new equipment and must be provided 

i. If yes, what is the output of the current readers? Example: 
Serial, Weigand, Other, etc.   Weigand 

ii. If no, is the City interested in any particular type of reader? 
b. How many permits are issued annually? Access cards – 2200 

monthly,  hang tags 730 monthly 
c. Are time schedules associated with permits?  

i. If yes, what are the time schedules? Example: Monday – 
Friday from 8am to 6pm.  Monday-Friday from 6am to 7pm  
2 garages are 24/7 hangs tags quarterly 

d. What is the current permit fee schedule? Range from $42 - $73 
2. Revenue Control 

a. Does the City issue validations for parking today? Yes  
i. If yes, how are validations issued? Example: The City issue 

validations to local businesses? City issues validations to 
local businesses. First half hr is free anything over and 
above is billed back to business.. 

ii. What types of validations are issued? Example: Percentage 
discount, Flat Rate, etc.  ½ to 2 hr or full amount. Flat rate 
full price 

b. What is the current visitor parking rate structure? $2 per hr 
3. General Parking Information 

a. Does the City do any type of event parking? Yes 
i. If yes, does the parker pull a ticket or do they pre-pay? 

Parker Pre-Pays 



4. Network Connections 
a. Please identify which parking locations that are identified on the 

map that was provided through the Bid Flash web site have TCP/IP 
connectivity available.   Coy Garage, Arena Garage, Stewart 
Eberhardt Garage 

i. For the garage locations that have TCP-IP connectivity 
please confirm if the connectivity is available at each lane -
yes  

b. For those parking locations that do not have TCP/IP connectivity; 
will the City or vendor be responsible for providing this capability?  
If no connectivity vendor will be responsible for providing 

5. Electrical Power 
a. For each parking location identified in the map provided through Bid 

Flash, is electrical power provided at each lane?  
b. If not, will the City or vendor be responsible for providing power? If 

no power is vendor will be responsible for providing 
6. Age of Equipment 

a. Please provide the age of the equipment at each parking location 
that currently has access/revenue equipment in place.  Market 
Street 12-1989, Lot O-1990, ESB 3-2002,  

b. Arena, 12-2005  & Coy 1-2007  
7. Model of Autocite Handheld unit 

a. Please provide the model of the handheld unit that is currently in 
use. Duncan AutociteX3CI 

8. Parking Citations 
a. Do police officers also issue parking citations?  If yes, do they use 

the Autocite handheld or write paper citations?  There are 
approximately 8 parking enforcement officers.  They use the 
autocite handheld 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
POSTED 6/24/10 
>>> Morris Chubb <mchubb@aparcsystems.com> 6/23/2010 2:44 PM >>> 
 
If possible, please fill out the matrix below: 
 

  
 
Please see attachment on the bid flash page. 
 
 
POSTED 6-22-10 
Received another set of questions from a proponent.  Please note that the 
answers/clarifications are incorporated into the email.  CITY response is in 
dark blue, bolded and italicized. 
 

Hello Alex, 

We were able to walk the garages yesterday.  Thank you for the map.  In our 
review of the facilities, we noticed that the existing Federal equipment appears to 
be online and communicating back to a head end system.  Is this true?  Yes in 



some of the lots the equipment is online and communicating back to a 
head system. 

In the RFP, it mentions that the vendor will need to integrate with the existing 
systems in place.  The most important question for us is: Will the chosen vendor 
be required to integrate with the existing Federal software?  If the answer to this 
is “yes” than subsequently, no one besides Federal will be able to do this.  No, 
the vendor will not be required to integrate the existing federal software.  
The RFP mentions the ability to incorporate existing equipment or new 
equipment must be provided. 

Thanks in advance for your assistance. Thanks for your interest in the City of 
Stockton. 

 

Chris Dix 
Sales Executive 
 
Amano McGann, Inc. 
900 Doolittle Dr., Suite 8A 
San Leandro, CA 94577 
Tel: 510-568-6484 
Fax: 510-568-0687 
Cell: 312-498-7477 
Chris.Dix@AmanoMcGann.com 
 
   
POSTED 6-16-10 
Received a set of questions from a proponent.  Please note that the 
answers/clarifications are incorporated into the email.  CITY response is in 
dark blue, bolded and italicized. 
 
Alex 
  
I have reviewed the RFP for the PARKING AUTOMATION EQUIPMENT FOR 
THE CITY OF STOCKTON (PUR 10- 040). While you have gone into great detail 
outlining the requirements for the proposal itself, the technical requirements for 
the actual equipment is somewhat generic.  The City realizes the requirements 
for the actual equipment is generic.  The City would like to see itemized 
bids on the available equipment and services offered so that it can 
strategically pick which items best fits the services required 
 
 
Section 2.0 Minimum Specifications states; 



 “The Central Parking District is considering parking automation equipment 
capable of providing cashier-free operation for its parking facilities.” 
Q> How many and what type of facilities are involved? Are they surface 
lots, Multi level parking structures, or On-street meters? 
The Number of facilities is to be determined.  The types of facilities include 
Multi level parking structures, surface lots and on-street meters.    
 
“This equipment must easily be able to:  
1) handle variable parking rates;  
2) accept cash or credit card;  
Q>Define “cash”. Is it notes only or notes and coins? What denominations 
of notes will be acceptable? What about giving change and in what form? 
Cash includes notes in denominations of 1,5,10,20.  No change.  Coin 
acceptance and ability to make change can be included as an option.   
 
3) allow access for monthly parking permit holders;  
Q>How will the permit holder be identified by the system? Prox Card, PIN 
code, hand tags?  
Permit holders will be identified with an automated access card 
 
 
 
4) facilitate parking validations from merchants. 
Q> What type of validations,(off line of online) will be required? How many 
different validation will be required? Will they be fixed rate of variable rate 
validations? 
Validations will be for 30 min; at all but one location.  One parking structure 
will have to accommodate 30 min, 2 hour and 4 hour validations.  
Validations will be fixed rate 
 
“Equipment for the garages must be able to incorporate existing equipment or 
new equipment and must be provided for driving lanes, ingress and egress lanes, 
including automated gate arms to limit access to the garage” 
Q> What equipment is existing, where is it located and what technology is 
used and who is the manufacturer? 
In our parking multilevel parking facilities there are control arms as well as 
ticket dispensing machines which are by Federal APD.   
 
“Identify ability to integrate City’s currently used enforcement handhelds. 
Q> What system and devices are currently used by the city? 
Currently the City uses Duncan’s Autocite Handheld 
Q> Has the city used any particular manufacturers products for 
establishing their requirements and budgets? If so who is that 
manufacturer and what products are the specifications based on? 
Various products were used as a basis for our requirements. There is no 
one manufacturer that the City can point to as a basis.   



Q> Has a site visit been scheduled? 
No site visit has been scheduled at this time.   
 
 I realize that these are a lot of questions. I have worked on several projects that 
started off like this in the past and the City ended up re-bidding the project 
several times because the range between the high and low bid’s was ridicules. 
One project had a low bid of $50,000.00 and a high bid of $600,000.00, for the 
sane specified system. 
Thank you for your interest in this project. 
  
Thanks  
 
Steve Crain 
 
Project Development Engineer 
Nor. California & So. Nevada         
1-800-273-4283, x271(office) 
1-650-365-5817(fax) 
1-650-222-1945 (cell)   
stevec@adautogate.com ( mailto:art@adautogate.com )   
 
 
POSTED 6-14-10 
 
 
1.  Communication  –  please send your communication  via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is June 25, 2010. 
 
3.  Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by July 1, 2010. 
 
4. Bids due promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, July 8, 2010,  City Clerk’s Office. 
 

 
 


